
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 


A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING EXTENSION THROUGH TAX 


INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 TO BENEFIT AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND IMPROVE 


HOUSING STOCK WITHIN THE CITY OF STOUGHTON. 
  


Committee Action: 
 
Finance Committee approved 4-0 on August 27, 2019 


  
Fiscal Impact:  TBD 


 


 
   
File Number: 


 
R-137-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 September 10, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton desires to extend the life of Tax Increment District No. 3 an 


additional year and apply the increment to affordable housing program(s); and 


 


WHEREAS, the Grow Stoughton Program has specific plans to benefit affordable housing and improve 


housing stock in Stoughton by providing grants to the Stoughton Housing Authority to assist with its 


major capital improvements and renovations, assisting first time homebuyers, and providing grants to 


homeowners for remediating environmental hazards including but not limited to lead water serve 


replacement, asbestos siding removal and lead-based paint removal; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton created Tax Increment District (TID) No. 3 in 1992 and has 


successfully completed implementation of the Project Plan; and  


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton of Stoughton will use the 2019 levy/2020 budget tax increment to 


pay off the final project costs in TID No. 3 and use the 2020 levy/2021 budget tax increment to fund the 


affordable housing program; and 


 


WHEREAS, TID No. 3 is required by statutes to be closed by November 24, 2019; and 


 


WHEREAS, through the exception under Wisconsin Statute, Section 66.1105(6)(g), a TID may 


be extended for up to one (1) year, utilizing the last year of tax increment towards affordable housing 


program(s); and 


 


WHEREAS, At least 75% of the final increment must benefit affordable housing. 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that 


protection and improvement of the City’s housing stock and home ownership stability is critical to 


maintaining property values and encouraging investment in City neighborhoods. 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the 2020 levy/2021 budget tax increment is available in TID No. 


3 to fund an affordable housing program as allowed under Wisconsin State Statutes 66.1105(6)(g). 


 







 


 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton will utilize 12 full months of the final 


year’s increment collected in budget year 2021 to fund housing programs to benefit affordable housing 


and improve the housing stock of the City. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 







 


 


Grow Stoughton 
A Home for Everyone 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







2 
 


Introduction 
Purpose 


Grow Stoughton is an initiative of the City of Stoughton designed to improve the 


city’s housing stock and to increase affordable housing opportunities for current 


and potential city residents. 


 


Goals and Objectives 


Grow Stoughton seeks to attain the following goals and objectives: 


 To incentivize improvements to existing housing stock. 


 To attract new residents to Stoughton.  


 To increase affordable housing opportunities. 


 To maintain and increase housing values.  


 


Programs 


Grow Stoughton will consist of three separate programs. 


 Stoughton Housing Authority Housing Stock Improvements 


 First-Time Home Buyer’s Down Payment Assistance 


 Homeowner Improvement Assistance  


 


Funding 


Grow Stoughton will be funded by various sources, including tax increment 


“Affordable Housing Extension” funding, related grant funding, donations, and 


interest earnings.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







3 
 


Stoughton Housing Authority Housing Stock Improvements 


 
Program Purpose 


The purpose of the Stoughton Housing Authority (SHA) Housing Stock 


Improvements program is to incentivize improvements to affordable residential 


housing owned by the SHA. The program provides grant assistance that does not 


need to be paid back to the City of Stoughton. 


 


Eligible Projects 


Projects of the following nature are eligible for assistance: 


 Capital projects that substantially add to the value of the residential building. 


 Projects identified in a Capital Needs Assessment that are acceptable to the 


City Council. 


 


Ineligible Projects 


 Operating expenses.  


 Capital projects under $2,500. 


 Eligible project expenses incurred prior to city approval of the application. 


 


Affordable Housing Requirement 


Funding from this program must be expended on affordable housing as defined as 


costing “a household no more than 30 percent of the household’s gross monthly 


income.” WI St 66.1105(2). 


 


Application 


The SHA shall apply for funding by filing an application and submitting it to the 


Stoughton Finance Committee, who will make a recommendation to the Stoughton 


City Council to approve, reject or modify the application. The Stoughton City 


Council will make the final determination to fund the project and at what level.  


 


Payment 


Once the application is approved and expenses incurred, SHA may apply for 


payment on a reimbursement basis. SHA will submit to the City Finance 


Department receipts or other documentation of expenses. The expense report will 


be forwarded to the Finance Committee and City Council for final approval.  


 


 


 







4 
 


First-Time Home Buyers Down Payment Assistance 


 
Program Purpose 


The purpose of the First-Time Home Buyers Down Payment Assistance program is 


to increase affordable homeownership opportunities in the City of Stoughton. The 


program will provide loans to qualifying residents to help with down payment 


requirements. 


 


Program Details 


This program will provide loans up to $5,000 that will serve as a down payment in 


the purchase of an eligible property. This program will be limited to no more than 


25 loans per calendar year. 


 


Eligible Properties 


 Owner-occupied homes in the City of Stoughton limits.  Property may be 


single family, an individual duplex unit or a condo unit. 


 First-home purchase: Defined as the applicant (including all the joint 


applicants on the first mortgage application or proposed co-owners) not 


owning a primary residence in the last five years prior to applying for 


assistance. 


 Must not be located in the 100-year flood plain. 


 


Security, Term and Interest Rate 


The loan will be secured by a junior mortgage.  The term of the loan will extend 


until the property is sold, ownership is transferred, cash-out refinance, foreclosed, 


leased, the applicant fails to maintain, and provide proof annually of, use of the 


assisted property as the applicant’s primary residence, or fifteen (15) years, 


whichever occurs first. The loan will not incur interest. 


 


Affordable Housing Requirement 


The sum of the monthly mortgage (principal and interest), property tax, 


homeowners’ association fees, and insurance payments must be less than 31% of 


the household’s gross monthly income as defined by WI St 66.1105(2).  


 


Household’s Gross Monthly Income Definition 


Gross monthly income is defined as “income from all of the household’s members 


from the following sources: wages, overtime, commissions, bonuses, profit 


sharing, tips, business income, child support, interest and dividends from funds 


retained after the closing, and other types of periodic payments which are 







5 
 


anticipated for the 12-month period commencing with the date of the request 


divided by 12 months. Income is gross and does not include deductions for 


retirement contributions, pensions, 401k’s, insurance deductions, etc.   


 


Application 


The applicant(s) shall file with the City of Stoughton Finance Committee an 


application detailing the request, household income, projected monthly property 


cost and any other relevant data requested by city staff.  The income will be 


properly verified.  The finance committee will make a recommendation to the 


Stoughton City Council to approve, reject or modify the application. The 


Stoughton City Council will make the final determination to fund the application 


and at what level. Once approved, the applicant(s) will have 180 days to close on 


the purchase an eligible property. The City shall have no obligation to fund the 


application after the expiration of this 180-day deadline. 


 


Payment 


If the applicant closes on the property within 180 days of approval of the 


application by the City Council, the loan will be funded at closing with the 


property subject to terms and conditions established by the City Council.  


 


Once the Stoughton Director of Finance has verified that all requirements have 


been met, the City will fund the loan by sending funds to the title company or other 


appropriate entity. The applicants will not be paid directly.   


 


The Stoughton Finance Department may charge the applicant for out-of-pocket costs 


related to funding and securing the loan. The fee may be paid at or prior to closing 


or deducted from loan proceeds. 


 


First-Come, First-Served 


Loans will be funded on a first-come, first-served and one-time basis at the time of 


closing. City staff are prohibited from lending out more funds than are designated 


and available for the loan program. E.g. no deficit spending.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







6 
 


 


 


 


 


Homeowner Environmental Remediation Assistance 


 


 
Program Purpose 


The purpose of the Homeowner Environmental Remediation Assistance (HERA) 


program is to improve the city’s housing stock by remediating environmental 


hazards. 


 


Funding Source 


The HERA program will be funded with TIF affordable housing extension funds 


and interest earnings. No more than 25% of the extension funds will be provided to 


the HERA program.   


 


Eligible Properties 


 Residential property in the City of Stoughton. 


 May be owner-occupied, tenant-occupied or vacant. 


 Project would not be funded but for assistance from the HERA program. 


 


Eligible Projects 


 Lead-contaminated private water services replacement.  


 Asbestos siding removal. 


 Lead-based paint removal. 


 Other eligible projects as determined by the City Council. 


 


Grant Share 


The HERA program will reimburse homeowners up to 100% of eligible costs up to 


a maximum of $1,500 for private lead water service replacement. The HERA 


program will reimburse homeowners up to 50% of eligible costs up to a maximum 


of $1,500 for asbestos siding removal, lead-based removal and other eligible 


projects. The funds will be a grant that does not need to be paid back as long as all 


program requirements are met. 


 


  


 







7 
 


Application 


The homeowner shall apply for funding by filing an application and submitting it 


to the Stoughton Finance Committee, who will make a recommendation to the 


Stoughton City Council to approve, reject or modify the application.  


 


Payment 


Once the application is approved and expenses incurred, the homeowner may 


apply for payment on a reimbursement basis. The homeowner will submit to the 


City Finance Department receipts or other documentation of expenses. The 


expense report will be forwarded to the Finance Committee and City Council for 


final approval.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


   


 


 


 





		07a-R-137-2019 TID No. 3 Affordable Housing Extension

		07b-Grow Stoughton Housing Policy






   
         
        


Date: September 5, 2019 


To: City of Stoughton Alders 


From: Brett Hebert, Director of Public Works 


Subject: John’s Disposal Rate Increase 


Dear Alders, 


John’s Disposal Service, our solid waste collection contractor, has asked to increase collection fees for 


recycling by $1.30 per month from $3.25 to $4.55 per month per unit beginning January 1, 2020.  This 


would raise the overall solid waste collection fee from $13.10 to $14.40 or a 9.9% increase.   


The reason for the increase, according to John’s Disposal, is that recycling markets abroad, specifically 


in China, have significantly reduced, if not stopped accepting recyclable materials from the United 


States.  In turn, this has flooded the domestic recycling market and caused prices per ton of recycled 


material to plummet.  John’s Disposal has gone from depending on recyclable material as a revenue 


source to having to pay to properly dispose of recycled material.  John’s Disposal did say that, even in 


these tough markets, nearly 100% of their recyclables do get properly recycled.  


However, our contract states that, “Fee increases shall be in an amount not to exceed the cost of living 


percentage (CPI-U-Midwest, The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers-Midwest Region.) as 


calculated annually and published by the Bureau of Labor and Statistics in August of each year. The City 


may terminate the agreement at the end of each year if the contractor requests increases greater than the 


CPI-U.”    


The CPI-U in July, 2019 was 1.5%.  As of this draft letter, the August publication had not been made 


public.  I would anticipate that it would be close to the July figure of 1.5%.  With that being said, John’s 


asking for an increase of 9.9% is well above the contract agreement.  The City has two choices, either 


we can accept the 9.9% ($1.30) increase per month per unit, or we can terminate the contract at the end 


of this year and go out for bid. 


Please keep in mind that the total fee includes monthly bulky item collection for residents and free 


collection of solid waste downtown and for all City facilities.  In Johns 2020 proposal if we choose to 


accept the fee increase, they would increase the downtown collection frequency to two times per week 


instead of once and would like to modify the bulky collection program to a call in system.  Under this 
new program, residents will still receive the same contract limits and the same number of 
collections (up to 1 per unit, per month) but may now select their collection week 
and will no longer have to wait for the last collection of the month.  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
2439 County Rd A, Stoughton, WI  53589 
(608) 877-8684   Office
(608) 877-8387   Fax


BRETT HEBERT 
Director of Public Works 
BHebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us 







We do have the option to void the current contract and rebid solid waste collection, but I just want to 


caution you that if we were to go out for bid, there is not guarantee that we would receive a better long 


term rate from another contractor.  All solid waste contractors are feeling the pinch in the recycling 


markets.  At the proposed rate of $13.15 per month for trash and recycling (excluding the bulky fee), we 


would be cost competitive with our neighboring communities: 


  


   2020 Proposed Rates 


    Stoughton $13.15 


Oregon $14.90 


   Verona  $12.17 


   McFarland $11.75 


   Fitchburg $14.12 


 


If we decided to rebid, we may also lose our free city facility collection benefit, which saves our tax 


payers thousands of dollars per year.  Another consideration is the disruption of changing over to a new 


hauler.  Also please keep in mind that John’s has not raised collection fees for our residents since 2017. 


 


 John’s has provided our residents with a quality service with very few issues since 2011.  Considering 


the recycling markets both domestic and abroad, I believe an increase of 9.9% is reasonable considering 


the level of service that not only our residents get but also the free solid waste collection service we 


enjoy at city facilities.   Staff recommends accepting the fee increase and the amendment to the current 


contract for service from John’s Disposal in 2020.      


 


 


 


Respectfully, 


 


 


Brett Hebert 


Director of Public Works 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 








 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” 


Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Partners of Stoughton Hospital for the Restyle, 


Repurpose, and Recycle Event 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety recommended approval 4-0 on August 28 


   
File Number: R-138-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   September 10, 2019 


 
WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class 


‘B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Partners of 


Stoughton Hospital for the Restyle, Repurpose, and Recycle Event; and  


 
WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on August 28, 2019, to consider the terms of the 


Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License and 


recommends approval, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class 


B” Wine Retailer’s License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City 


of Stoughton, attached hereto and incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of 


Stoughton and the Partners of Stoughton Hospital.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote    _ 


 

















		09a-R-138-2019 Approving a Temp Class B and Special Event for Partners of Stoughton Hospital

		09b-Partners of Stoughton Hospital Temp Class B Application






 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” 


Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to Relay for Life for the Home Tour Opening Gala 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety recommended approval 4-0 on August 28, 2019 


   
File Number: R-139-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   September 10, 2019 


 
WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the City to approve an Application for a Temporary Class 


‘B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to Relay for Life for the 


Home Tour Opening Gala; and  


 
WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on August 28, 2019, to consider the terms of the 


Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License and 


recommends approval, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to execute the Temporary Class “B” Beer and “Class 


B” Wine Retailer’s License and a Special Event License based on no fines or fees due to the City 


of Stoughton, attached hereto and incorporated as part of this resolution, between the City of 


Stoughton and Relay for Life.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote    _ 


 







To 6:30 to 9:30


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


SPECIAL EVENT LICENSE 


APPLICATION 


. 


FEE: $30.00 


3 years at same event 


charges incurred either in regulating this license or remedying any unsatisfactory post-event maintenance 
by the above named person or organization as required. 


4 K�V �i�M_/�13 __ _
Date 


Office Use: Date Pai Amount Paid 













		10a-R-139-2019 Approving a Temp Class B and Special Event for Relay for Life

		10b-Relay For Life Home Tour Opening Gala










RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to issue a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage 


license to Gemini Games, LLC., Brianna Fero, agent, d/b/a Gemini Games located at 193 W Main 


Street.  


Committee Action: Public Safety Committee recommended approval 4-0 on August 28,2019 


Fiscal Impact: License fee $100/annually   


File Number: R-140-2019 Date Introduced:  September 10, 2019 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for a Class “B” Fermented Malt 


Beverage License from Gemini Games, LLC., Brianna Fero agent, d/b/a Gemini Games located at 


193 W Main Street.; and  


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on August 28, 2019 to consider the terms of the 


liquor license application and upon favorable recommendation from the Public Safety Committee, 


approval. Now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage 


License to Gemini, Games, LLC., Brianna Fero, agent, d/b/a Gemini Games located at 193 W. 


Main St. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim, Swadley, Mayor Date 







Original Alcohol Beverage Retail License Application 
/Submit to municipal clerk.) 


For the license period beginning: __ ... rmmddyyyyr· . _ ending: _k/ .�lkP--


Applicant's Wisconsin Seller's Permit Number 
l,l S-Le - 1ozq�ql2-.; c,0-01. 


FEIN Number �/i -ZO']?f!,{p 
-- ·- ·--·--··· - . - -·. -- - -, . q ___ 


TYPE OF LICENSE 
FEE 


REQUESTED 


,-, Town of · k 1 .L... A 


-- -------- - - - - -- -- . 


To the Governing Body of the: l.:l Village of} 5.'L�Cj �ln�---
� City of 


County of __ Q,Vl,l,,�- - --- -- Aldermanic Dist. No._ 
(if required by ordinance) 


Check one: [] Individual 
::J Partnership 


%L Limited Liability Company
O Corporalion/Nonprofil Organization 


17 Class A beer 
M'c1ass_B beer 
D Class C wlne 


--- --- - - - - -- ---- - - --- -,---


[' I Class A liquor 
- - --- , .,., 


�J_ Clas__s__,\_Hciuor (cider only) 
[l Class B liquor 
LJ Res�!_V� __ 91ass B _ljquor


--- -


[JC lass B (wine only) winery_ 
PublicaUon fee 


TOTAL FEE


Na;ur (Individual/ partners lve last name, firsl, middle; corporalions / limited liability companies give registered name) 


�.e..M i vi ; . lLVV\.Q') LL L. 


----- ---- ----


$ /(}(2 _____ 
$ 


s 


!_ ___ NIA 
------


$ 


$ 
$ 


--


$ � -iJ 
$ //fl) 


An "Auxiliary Questionnaire," Form AT-103, must be completed and attached to this application by each Individual applicant, 
by each member of a partnership, and by each officer, director and agent of a corporation or nonprofit organization, and by 
each member/manager and agent of a limited liability company. List the full name and place of residence of each person. 


/ {' Presldenll Member Lasl Name I (Firs!) ! (Middle Name) : Home Addre,


5


s,reel, c;iy or Post om
(\ 


& Zip Code) 


v�\:� ,J lyQ.,r() l�\'1�\11._\r\i)_L_
l
!'{3-_�i_tl_�     3


Vice President/ Member Last Name I (First) (Mlddle Name) l Home Address (S or Post Office, & Zip Code) 


-�Qx\9 _ ---�-;_:_t�\.µ[ :G.�v-t    
Secretary I Member Last Name I (First) l(�"aate Name) ! 


! 


Treasurer I Member last Name (First) I (Middle Name) I Home Address (Street, City or Post Office, & Zip Code) 


Agent Last Name (First) I (Middle Name) I Home Address (Street, City or Post Office, & Zip Code) 


Director$/ Milnagers last Name I (Flrsl) I (Midd�e Name) I Home Address (Street, City or PoSi""bffite·: -& Zip Code) 


1. Trade Name -=!---'-'1'-'--'-'----'---'-..C.,=-'----'=,.,_-----�- Business Phone Number /Q(l) � 'JPfi 'il:7:>':l-9
2. Address of Premises +-+'-.,__,,��==���_,._,_.....,,..,_._'t-'-'="-' Post Office & Zip Code _'J�'�·:S-S:-�-<>i+-------
3. Premises description: Describe building or buildings where alcohol beverages are to be sold and stored. The


applicant must Include all rooms including living quarters, if used, for the sales, service, consumption, and/or
storage of alcohol beverages and records. (Alcohol beverages may be sold and stored only on !he premises
described.)


�!·,;:��tk!felr1
�B::e'1�'.r 3'�d �


4. Legal description (omit if street address I$ given above): -------------------
5. (a) Was !his premises licensed for !he sale of liquor or beer during !he past license year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d Yes � No


(b) If yes, under what name was license Issued? ---------------------


AT-106(R.3-19) Wisconsin Oeparlmenl of Revenue 





















		11a-R-140-2019 Gemini Games

		11b-Gemini Games, LLC App










 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 


Authorizing and directing the proper City Officials (s) to amend the fees associated with the building use 


policy 


  


 
Fiscal Impact: Fees reduced to $10/hour 


 
File Number: 


 
R-141-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
September 10, 2019 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton offers use of certain City facilities by and for the benefit of 


residents, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has created a Municipal Building Use Policy related to the use 


of specific spaces, and 


 


WHEREAS, proposed changes to fee structure of the Building Use Policy have been reviewed 


and recommended by the Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby supports and 


approves the updated Municipal Building Use Policy fee structure. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL BUILDING USE POLICY 
Approved by Council 7/23/2019 9/10/19 


 


STATEMENT OF POLICY 


Recognizing that City Buildings and their grounds belong to the community, the City of Stoughton offers the 


use of certain City facilities by and for the benefit of residents, but not to interfere with any municipal 


operation of the community. The primary use for all city buildings will be for city business and events, which 


shall take precedence over and above any secondary uses. This policy does not cover the Opera House 


Theater, Library or Park Facilities such as shelters or athletic fields, which are covered under separate 


policies.  The Common Council Chambers also serves as the City’s Emergency Operations Center and 


therefore cannot be reserved for non-governmental users.  Reasonable cost recovery fees will be assessed to 


maintain City facilities for future use. 


 


Commercial enterprises and for-profit businesses will not be allowed to reserve city building spaces.  


 


The City of Stoughton will consider all qualified users without regard to race, color, religion, creed, gender, 


national origin, age, disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, or other status covered by 


applicable state or federal laws or regulations. 


 
The fact that a group is permitted use of the room(s) does not in any way constitute endorsement of the group’s 


policies or beliefs by the City, or staff. 


 


All organizations/individuals using the Stoughton City Buildings will maintain compliance with Federal, State 


and local laws and regulations regarding discrimination. This includes but is not limited to the Federal Americans 


with Disabilities Act. 


 


This policy may be subject to change based on need or circumstances as approved by the City. 


 


APPLICATION PROCESS 


Applications for use of available rooms will be given on a first request basis.  All City of Stoughton 


committees, commissions and boards, city departments, and any other groups under the control of the City 


Council shall be given priority in scheduling.  Building use will be determined by the Building Director 


(BD). Groups will be allowed to use the facility on a first-come, first-served basis after governmental groups.  


Room use will be limited to twelve times per calendar year.  Advance reservations must be made 30 days in 


advance, except in special circumstances as approved by BD. Regularly scheduled meetings may be made no 


more than 6 months in advance, and are always subject to cancellation due to city needs. 


 


The application shall specify the facilities requested, the date(s) needed, time and the name, telephone 


number, and the address of at least one (1) person of the organization or group who shall be personally 


responsible for all charges arising out of the intended use of such facility.  Applications for use of a facility 


shall be submitted to the appropriate facility contact listed in the section below. 


 


APPEAL PROCESS 


If there is a question as to approval or denial of a user group by the BD, an appeal may be submitted to the 


Mayor. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


 


 


FACILITY USER FEE SCHEDULE 


Subject to availability and approval by BD, use of facilities during normal business hours shall not be subject 


to a rental fee. 


 


All facilities rented for hours outside normal operation will be charged an hourly rental fee.  The fee shall be 


charged per hour and will start ½ hour before the scheduled start time of the event and continue ½ hour 


following the completion of the event.  The fee is intended to cover basic overhead including building 


monitoring during the event.  The fee shall be $10 $15 per hour. 


 


Rental fees may be waived at BD’s request or judgment for specific charitable or non-profit activities that 


benefit the city. 


 


USERS 


 


Governmental Users 


City of Stoughton governmental meetings and activities include, but are not limited to: meetings of city 


committees, commissions, boards, events or meetings sponsored by a City department, committee or 


commission and are under the control of that body and is staffed by a City employee.  City governmental 


users shall be given priority in scheduling.  Other governmental units may be granted use of space if space is 


available. 


 


Non-Governmental Users 


Non-governmental users are all users not considered governmental users. 


Non-governmental users may be allowed use of the facility per this policy when space is available, with the 


understanding that if a governmental user requires the use of a facility they will be bumped from using the 


facility.  The City of Stoughton specifically excludes the following types of uses of its meeting rooms 


(except at the Library where Library Board Policies shall govern): 


 Programs involving the sale, advertising or promotion of products or services.  City facility space is 


not intended to compete with private locations for profit making events.   


 Training events that are used to promote, market, or sell items or services.   


 Business firms and other for-profit organizations soliciting or selling products or services, regardless 


of purpose. 


 Private social functions, such as showers, birthday parties, and the like (except at the Senior Center 


and Youth Center.) 


 Political campaigns and/or fundraising. 


 Programs not in keeping with the City’s goals and objectives, or which would interfere with the 


operation of the City 


  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


ROOMS AVAILABLE FOR USE 


Rooms listed in this Section may be available to groups and organizations upon approval dependent on the 


user requirements, availability of space and time of use.  Requests for use of meeting rooms should be 


submitted to the following for processing: 


 


*Please see the attached fee schedule. 


 


EMS – EMS Office, 873-6500 


Normal Business Hours: Monday-Friday, 7:30 a.m.-4:30 p.m.  


 


Hanson Room:  Room size: 40 X 28 


 


Code Capacity = 90 persons 


Design Capacity = 50 persons 


Furnishings: Flip top tables on coasters, chairs and podium.  


Audiovisual Available: Ceiling mounted projector, projection screen, VCR/DVR, TVs (2) 


and podium. Wireless Internet access available 


No computer available for use 


 


Halverson Room: Room size: 32 X 22 


 


Code Capacity = 32 


Design Capacity = 20 persons 


Furnishings:  Flip top tables on coasters, chairs and podium. 


Audiovisual Available: Ceiling mounted projector, projection screen, VCR/DVR, White 


Board, TV and podium.  Wireless Internet access available 


No computer available for use 


 


Note: Halverson & Hanson Room can be combined to accommodate larger meeting space. 


 


Fire Department – Fire Chief, 873-7218 


Normal Business Hours: Monday-Friday, 7:30 a.m.-4:30 p.m. 


 


Training Room:  Approximately 1,500 square feet, 25 tables and 50 chairs available; Room 


Capacity: 45 seated at tables, 80 without tables; Video Projector (no computer provided) and Audio 


equipment available, wireless Internet access available. No computer available for use 


 


Opera House Facility – Opera House Director, 646-0019 


Normal Business Hours, Tuesday-Friday, 9:00 a.m.-4:30 p.m. 


 


Hall of Fame Room – Meeting room with maximum capacity of 25 people, table to accommodate 


10 people and perimeter seating.  Video projector (no computer provided) and wireless Internet 


access available.   


 


Giles Dow Room – Meeting room with maximum capacity of 25 people, table to accommodate 10 


people and perimeter seating.  Wireless Internet access available. 


 


Ed Overland Room – Meeting room with maximum capacity of 15 people, table to accommodate 6 


people and perimeter seating.  Wireless Internet access available. 


  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


 


Senior Center – Senior Center Receptionist, 873-8585 


Normal Business Hours, Monday-Friday, 8:00 a.m.-4:30 p.m. 


 


Main Floor – Seating for 80 people at tables; Video Projector (no computer provided) and Audio 


equipment available, wireless Internet access available.  Kitchen available for catered foods only – 


no utensils or tableware available for use. 


 


Lower Level – Capacity 30 to 50, wireless Internet access available. 


Second Floor – 2 small meeting rooms with capacity 10 to 15, wireless Internet access available. 


Youth Center – Parks & Recreation Director, 873-6746 


Normal Business Hours: Monday-Friday 3:00 p.m.-6:00 p.m. 


 


Main Floor – Lounge Area with TV and Video Games – No food on carpet, kitchen available for 


catered foods only – no utensils or tableware available for use. 


 


Second Floor – Capacity to 200 


 


GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 


 


Conditions of Use: 


 


The applicant(s) must provide sufficient supervision so that the event will remain orderly and to prevent 


damage to the facility. 


 Decorations and other items may not be attached to walls or fixtures; 


 Prior to departure the room will be put into the same condition and configuration; 


 On departure all lights shall be turned off and the room\facility secured and locked.   


 Violations to this policy shall be grounds to deny future requests. 


 


The use of the room is subject to all ordinances and laws being complied with, specifically, but not limited to 


the prohibition of tobacco use and/or possession of alcohol or illegal substances. 


 


The City may place restrictions and/or additional requirements for the use of the facility.  The applicant may 


be required to pay for these associated costs. 


 


Cleaning and/or Damage to City Property 


 


The applicant shall be responsible for: 


 Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the City for the purpose of cleaning the facility 


beyond customary cleaning done by the city; 


 For the cost of replacement or repair of damaged or stolen property. 


 


Miscellaneous 


 


The City is not responsible for any equipment or other property left at the facility at any time.  Property left 


for 30 days will be deemed abandoned and disposed of in a manner deemed appropriate by the City. 


 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


Unless specified otherwise by the BD, premises must be returned to its original condition, to include location 


of tables and chairs and equipment (if any) used. All trash and refuse generated will be removed and hauled 


to designated location by users. 


 


Additional specific policies, rules, exceptions, and limitations as pertain to each specific building are 


contained herein, and violations by users may lead to suspension of use privileges for any using party. 


Failure to meet the above requirements may result in the denial of future use for the individual or group 


associated with the facility’s use. 


 
Approved by the Common Council on July 26, 2005 


Revision approved by Council on August 22, 2006 


Revision approved by Council on January 27, 2009 


Revisions approved by Common Council on July 29, 2015 


Revisions approved by Common Council on July 23, 2019 


Revisions approved by Common Council on September 10, 2019 


 


 


  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 


BUILDING USE APPLICATION 


 


This form is to be completed by all groups requesting use of a City facility for an event that is not a primary City function.  


The City reserves the right to cancel a scheduled use in the event of an anticipated violation of any rule, regulation or law or 


if a governmental user requires the use of the facility.  Any misrepresentation on the application may void any use of the 


facility. 


 


__________ EMS Facilities – contact EMS Office (873-6500) 


__________ Fire Station Training Room contact Fire Chief (873-7218) or firedept@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


__________ Opera House Facilities – contact Opera House Director (646-0019) 


__________ Senior Center Facilities – contact Senior Center Receptionist (873-8585) 


__________ Youth Center – contact Parks & Recreation Director (873-6746) 


 


 


ORGANIZATION: 


 


 


ORGANIZATION CONTACT: 


 


 


 Name: 


 


 


 Phone:     


 


Days: 


  


Evenings: 


 


 


 Name: 


 


 


 Address: 


 


 


 


 


 


DATE OF MEETING: 


 


 


 


 


Beginning 


at  


  


AM/PM 


  


Ending at 


  


AM/PM 


 


 


ATTENDANCE – EST. TOTAL 


 


DESCRIBE PLANNED 


ACTIVITY IN DETAIL: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT:  The undersigned application agrees to abide by all rules and regulations of the City of 


Stoughton regarding use of city facilities, to hold harmless and to indemnify the City of Stoughton from any and all claims, 


losses, damages, actions, causes of action and liabilities of any kind or nature whatsoever which are directly or indirectly 


related to the use of the facilities described herein by the undersigned and any guests, friends or invitees which result in 


injury or loss of property to any person using the facilities herein described.  My organization/group will be responsible for 


the repair or replacement of any damages to the facility.  My organization/group agrees to comply with the conditions set 


forth in the City of Stoughton Building Use Policy.  My organization/group agrees to meet ADAA (Americans with 


Disabilities Act) requirements and to provide accommodations to access the meeting or program. 


 


 


  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\09-10-19\12b-BUILDING USE POLICY.docxS:\Planning\RJS\City Building\Building Use Policy\BUILDING 


USE POLICY-Council Approved 7-23-2019.docx 


 


 


Additional Requirements: 


  


  


 


 


 


Signature: 


    


 


Approved: 


   


Date: 


 


 


FEES AND DEPOSITS 


 


_________________________No Fee for Governmental Defined Users 


 


_________________________Flat Fee $10 per use  


 


___hours at $1015/hour _______ Hourly Rental Fee (starting ½ hour before  


event and continuing ½ hour beyond event.) 


 


_________________________ TOTAL 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
207 S. Forrest Street 


Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589 
(608) 873-6677 


 


Date:   August 2, 2019 


 


To:  CACP Committee 


 


From:  Holly Licht, City Clerk  


 


Subject:  Building Use Policy Fees  


 


On July 23, 2019 the Council approved changes the to the building use policy. During the 


discussion, an alder identified that the fees within the policy needed to be looked at.  Currently, 


the City charges a $10 flat fee, and a $15 fee/hour starting ½ hour before the event and 


continuing a ½ after the event.  


 


I sent a message out to Wisconsin Clerks to see what other municipalities charge for room rentals 


and received the following:  


 


 City of Two Rivers: Allows use of the Council Chambers if there are no City 


meetings. No charge for the rental. Police Department is in same building so there 


is always someone around (no observers.)  


 Village of Eagle: Allows municipal organizations and nonprofits (4H, Girl Scouts, 


Cub Scouts, etc.) to use without a fee. There is a minimum of $25 clean up fee if 


the room is not left clean.  


 Village of Hortonville: Charges residents $30/hour or $150 for full day. Non-


residents $60/hour or $300 full day. Nonprofits $20/hour or $100 for full day.  


 City of Chilton: Allows use of room within Police Department. Cost is $50/day 


and $50 deposit. Nonprofits are not charged if they are based within the City.  


 City of Hudson: Council Chambers can be used $25/hour, but has to be during 


business hours.  


 Village of Kimberly: Charges based on size of the room rented, prices range from 


$20/day-$75/day. Security deposit must also be paid; prices range $50-$200. 


Civic groups are free if 50% or more members live within the village.  


 City of Brookfield: Library is the only building that offers community space. The 


Public Safety Building and City Hall are not available to outside groups.  


 City of Verona: Library is the only building that offers community space. The 


Public Safety Building and City Hall are not available to outside groups. 


 Village of Spring Valley: Room rentals for $10/hour, no exemptions for 


nonprofits.  







 Village of Allouez: Fees range depending on room and type of group. Nonprofits 


there is no charge, $35-$75/day for residents, $45-$100/day for non-residents.  


 Town of LaValle: Conference/Board rooms are not available to the public.  


 Stoughton School District: Costs vary based on the type of room: $5-$41/hour for 


residents. Non-resident fees are $1-$2 more per hour.  


 


The City currently pays $10/hour for “Room Observers” when the facility is not open. No other 


municipality that responded has any type of employee like this.  So far in 2019, we have 


collected $570 and we have paid Room Observers $340.  


 


 


 


 





		12a-R-141-2019

		12b-BUILDING USE POLICY

		12c-Builing Use Policy Memo






City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing Disposal of Excess Topsoil from the Business Park Expansion Project and directing the 


Mayor to enter into agreements with the affected landowners and an associated Change Order with the 


Contractor 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee meets September 10, 2019 


  
Fiscal Impact:  $10,000 + savings 


 


    
File Number: 


 
R-142-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
September 10, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the City has entered into a contract for the 2019 Business Park Expansion that is set to 


begin now; and 


 


WHEREAS, the project will produce excess topsoil that was planned to be placed onto City land that is 


being marketed for development; and 
 


WHEREAS, an option has developed that will allow the excess topsoil to be directly hauled to a nearby 


farm field for future disbursement on their crop land; and 


 


WHEREAS, time is of the essence since the contractor is scheduled to start and their first activity is to 


move topsoil, and  
 


WHEREAS, the City will need to enter into agreements with the landowners and execute a Change 


Order with the Contractor to proceed with this option, and  


 


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee met on September 10, 2019 and recommends approval; now 


therefore 
 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton authorizes disposal of the topsoil 


to the nearby farm field and authorize the Mayor to execute agreements with the land owners and an 


associated Change Order with the contractor for this work.  


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2019 Resolution - 2019 Business Park Expansion Project - Glacier Moraine Drive.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


Date:  September 6, 2019 


 


To:  Finance Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Business Park Expansion Project – Topsoil Disposal 


 


This project that is planned to start now will generate a significant amount of excess topsoil; 


upwards of 20,000 cubic yards.  The cost of trucking this material off site would have exceeded 


the project budget so the plans were developed to spread this topsoil onto the lands that are being 


marketed for sale.  While this is an acceptable means to manage this issue, it does potentially 


require buyers of the land to utilize it as part of their project or haul it away.  Based on soil 


boring information, there is already adequate topsoil on this land. 


 


Just recently, discussions with adjacent land owners matured to a point where they are interested 


in accepting the excess topsoil for them to disperse onto their crop land.  Under this scenario, the 


City’s contractor would directly haul the excess material to their property and we would not have 


to place the excess material onto lots to be sold. 


 


We have discussed the option of directly hauling to excess topsoil to this property with the 


contractor and due to how they would be able to complete the work, there would be a significant 


cost savings to the City’s project. 


 


The receiving land owner is requesting: 


 The topsoil be placed in one pile; 


 $3,000 to allow them to spread the stockpiled topsoil once the remaining crops are 


harvested; 


 $1,000 per acre of disturbed cropland (approximately $7,000) 


 They obtain the necessary permits to distribute the topsoil on their land. 


 


Including the landowner’s requests, the City realize a net savings plus the excess topsoil will not 


create a burden on the land the City is attempting to sell. 


 


 


 


 


 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


 


Time is of the essence, since the contractor is prepared to start and their first activity will be to 


begin removing topsoil.  Therefore, we recommend the Council authorize disposal of the topsoil 


to the nearby farm field and authorize City staff and the Mayor to execute agreements with the 


land owners and an associated Change Order with the contractor for this work. 


 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
    


     


 
    


 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance Committee 9-6-19 Business Park Expansion - Topsoil Disposal.docx 





		13a-R-142-2019 Resolution - 2019 Business Park Expansion Project - Glacier Moraine Drive

		13b-Finance Committee 9-6-19 Business Park Expansion - Topsoil Disposal






Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.  or shortly thereafter pending the 


adjournment of the Finance Committee Meeting 


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, 


Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Brett Schumacher  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 American Legion Proclamation 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


Public Safety (7/24/19); CACP (8/6/19);  Finance (8/13/19)  


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 
 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. August 27, 2019 Council Minutes  


B. R-134-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


5. R-135-2019- Resolution Providing for the Sale of Approximately $1,900,000 Waterworks System 


Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Finance meets on September 10, 2019)  


 


6. R- 136-2019- Authorizing the City of Stoughton Finance Department to create a garbage and 


recycling service special revenue fund (Refuse Fund). (Finance approved 5-0 on August 27, 2019)  


 


7. R-137-2019- Resolution approving an Affordable Housing Extension through Tax Increment 


District No. 3 to Benefit Affordable Housing and Improve Housing Stock within the City of 


Stoughton (Finance approved 5-0 on August 27, 2019)  


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





8. Discussion and possible action regarding John’s Disposal Contract Amendment (Finance meets 


September 10, 2019)  


 


9. R-138-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B” Beer and “Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Partners of 


Stoughton Hospital for the Resytle, Repurpose, and Recycle Event (Public Safety approved 4-0 on 


August 28, 2019)  


 


10. R-139-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary Class 


“B” Beer and “Class B” wine Retailers License and Special Event License to Relay for Life for the 


Home Tour Opening Gala (Public Safety approved 4-0 on August 28, 2019)  


 


11. R-140-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City Official (s) to approve a Class “B” 


Fermented Malt Beverage License to Gemini Games, LLC. d/b/a Gemini Games, Brianna Fero, 


Agent, located at 193 W Main St. (Public Safety approved 4-0 on August 28, 2019)  


 


12. R-141-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City Officials (s) to amend the fees associated 


with the building use policy (CACP approved 4-0 on September 3, 2019)  


 


13. R-142-2019- Authorizing Disposal of Excess Topsoil from the Business Park Expansion Project 


and directing the Mayor to enter into agreements with the affected landowners and an associated 


Change Order with the Contractor (Finance meets on September 10, 2019)  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  


 








Proclamation 


American Legion Centennial Day 
WHEREAS, The American Legion has been a staunch advocate for veterans and 


their families since 1919; and 


WHEREAS, The American Legion was founded on the four pillars of care for 


veterans, a strong national defense, Americanism, and Children and youth; and 


WHEREAS, The American Legion has played a leading role in initiatives and 


breakthroughs that have affected the lives of Americans in every community, from 


U.S. Flag Code to the GI Bill; and Veteran Services; and 


WHEREAS,  Otis Sampson Post 59 members have fulfilled the Legion’s mission 


since it chartered September 16, 1919, through programs such as Badger Boys and 


Girls State; Scholarships; Athletic Awards; Dane County Government Days; Care 


Packages to Hundreds of Area Active Duty Troops; Honor Guard Services at 


Veteran’s Funerals; Memorial Day Services and Parades; Christmas Presents to Area 


Needy Families; Partnerships with Stoughton Area Schools, Scouts, Special Olympics, 


and other Area Non-Profits; and 


WHEREAS, The American Legion is celebrating its Centennial in 2019. 


NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Swadley, The Honorable Mayor of the City of 


Stoughton, do hereby proclaim September 16, 2019 as “Stoughton American Legion 


Centennial Day.” 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 


the official seal of the City of Stoughton on this          day of                         , 2019. 


 


 


 


   Tim Swadley, Mayor 


 








PUBLIC SAFETY MINUTES 


WEDNESDAY, JULY 24, 2019 @ 6:00 P.M.  


OPERA HOUSE BUILDING, HALL OF FAME ROOM, 381 EAST MAIN STREET 


Present: 


Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tim Riley, Ozzie Doom, Mayor Swadley, Chief Leck, and City Clerk Holly Licht 


Guests:  


Brianna and Tyler Fero, Laura Trotter, Callie LaPoint, Linda Schaefer, Teressa Pellett, Lourdes Aranda 


Absent and Excused:  


None  


Call to Order:  


Greg Jenson called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  


Communications:  


Chief Leck announced that Lt. Nate Hartwig is going to be resigning as he will be moving with his family 


out of state. He also announced that the Police Department would be hosting its first annual National 


Night out on August 6th at the Nordic Ridge Park.   


Approval of the June 26, 2019 Public Safety Minutes:  


Motion by Ligocki, second by Riley to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding an application for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and 


Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License for La Cantina, LLC., d/b/a La Cantina located at 620 


Nygaard Street  


Lourdes Aranda, the applicant, stated that the restaurant would be serving authentic Mexican dishes. 


She stated that this is their 3rd location in Wisconsin. The hours for the restaurant will be Sunday-


Thursday 11:00 a.m.-9:00 p.m., weekends 11:00 a.m.-10:00 p.m. Motion by Doom, second by Riley to 


recommend that the council approve a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and Reserve “Class B” 


Intoxicating Liquor License for La Cantina, LLC., d/b/a La Cantina located at 620 Nygaard Street. Motion 


carried 5-0.  


Discussion and possible action regarding an application for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage for 


Gemini Games, LLC., d/b/a Gemini Games located at 193 West Main Street   


Brianna Fero, the applicant explained the concept of the business. She said that it would be a novelty 


game store with free-to-play space. They would also like to serve beer for people to consume on 


premises. Chief Leck said that the alcohol would have to be completely separate from where minors 


were. The committee discussed having the downstairs for 21+ only, but that there would need to an 


operator overseeing the area the whole time. Clerk Licht passed out copies of Wis. Stat. sec. 125.07 (3). 


The committee agreed that, with the space it would be difficult to allow unaccompanied minors in. The 


committee took no action on the item.   


Discussion and possible action regarding a special event license and Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” 


Retailer’s License for Stoughton Chamber of Commerce for a Wine Walk  


Callie LaPoint, Stoughton Chamber of Commerce, stated that they are going to have 15 businesses 


participate. She said that all wine will be in the front of the store. She noted that there will be dump 







buckets by the door and signs that say “no alcohol beyond this point.” Chief Leck and Clerk Licht both 


stated that there were no issues with the application. Motion by Riley, second by Ligocki to recommend 


that the council approve a temporary Class B Wine license for the Stoughton Chamber Wine Walk. 


Motion carried 5-0. 


Adjournment:  


Motion by Ligocki, second Riley to adjourn at 6:53 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk  







COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES 


Tuesday, August 6, 2019 @ 6:00 PM 


ED OVERLAND ROOM, OPERA HOUSE, 381 E MAIN ST. STOUGHTON, WI  


Present: 


Alders Jean Ligocki, Ben Heili, Brett Schumacher, Regina Hirsch and Mayor Tim Swadley  


Also Present: 


City Clerk Holly Licht  


Absent and Excused:  


None 


Call to Order:  


Ligocki called the meeting to order 6:00 p.m.  


Communications: 


Ligocki stated that she would like to propose a social media policy for alders. Schumacher mentioned 


that the school district has a similar policy and would make a good starting point. Heili stated that he 


would like City Climate Change and Renewal Energy target be put on the agenda for September.  


Discussion and Possible Action regarding a charitable donation policy:  


Clerk Licht stated that Attorney Dregne suggested dealing with requests on a case-by-case basis instead 


of drafting a policy. Hirsch stated that it was necessary to have a policy to lay out the process. The 


committee agreed. They directed clerk to make the following language changes in the policy: add limited 


to monetary funds, not in-kind, take out the officially affiliated, explicitly call out the food pantry and the 


City Band. The committee wants to see the policy at the next meeting before it went to council.  


Discussion regarding mobile food carts:  


The committee stated that food carts that are part of a special event or city should be  exempt from 


getting a permit. They added that the ordinance should read that a food cart cannot be within 300 of 


the perimeter of a special event. The ordinance should not reference private property. They wanted to 


make a designate food cart area to present to the public safety committee and get feedback from the 


chief of police. Hirsch stated that there should be no food carts on HWY 51 unless part of a special 


event. They suggested listing the county sanitary requirements in an appendix instead of listing them all 


twice within the ordinance. The committee directed Clerk Licht to make the changes. The committee 


wants to work on this for another meeting before the attorney reviews it. 


Approval of the June 4, 2019 CACP Minutes 


Motion by Heili, second by Hirsch to approve the minutes with the correction under the mobile food 


cart policy. Clerk Licht stated she would finish the sentence. Motion carried 5-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding Building Use Policy Fees  


Motion by Heili, second by Schumacher to change the fee to $10/hour, change the time charged before 


and after the meeting to ¼ hour, and include the normal business hours for each building within the 


policy.  Motion carried 5-0. 


Adjournment:  


Motion by Ligocki, second by Hirsch to adjourn at 7:47 p.m. Motion carried 5-0.  







FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Tuesday, August 13, 2019 @6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 321 S FOURTH STREET, STOUGHTON,WI  


Present:  
Brett Schumacher, Ozzie Doom, Lisa Reeves, and Mayor Swadley 


Others Present:  
Finance Director Friedl, Clerk Licht, Planning Director Scheel, Human Resources Director Gillingham, 
Police Chief Leck, Senior Center Director McGlynn  


Absent and Excused: 
Greg Jenson 


Call to Order:  
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


Communications:  


Reports: the following report was entered into the record.  


• Contingency Report  


Discussion regarding revisions to the City of Stoughton Purchasing Policy 
Finance Director Friedl said at times it is very difficult to follow the current policy.  He said the current 
policy doesn’t address sole source and continuity purchases, cooperative procurement programs, large 
supply orders and emergency purchases. The proposal from the Finance Department would be to create 
separate policies for CIP and operational budget costs.  Under the new policy, for CIP purchases, if the 
purchase is under budget, no further approval is required.  If over budget, finance committee approval is 
required, and if it is not budgeted for it will need to go through Finance and Council. For the operational 
budget we need to trust the annual budget and the monthly reporting process. He added that 
Department Heads need to be held accountable for overages. Schumacher suggested looking at CIP 
budgeted amounts to actuals for the next year to gauge where we are.  


Approval of the July 23, 2019 Finance Committee Minutes 
Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to approve the minutes. Motion carried 4-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding 2019 Business Park Expansion Contract No. 3-2019 (Glacier 
Moraine Drive) 
Planning Director Scheel stated that the City received 4 competitive bids for the project. The project will 
begin in 2019 and will be completed in 2020. The City has a good relationship with the contractor.  


Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend that the council 2019 Business Park Expansion 
Contract No. 3-2019 (Moraine Drive). Motion carried 4-0. 


Discussion and possible action to reserve an amount of unassigned fund balance not to exceed 
$20,000 to fund the Senior Center Program Volunteer Coordinator position through 2020 
Finance Director Friedl said that the Bryant foundation has reduced the amount they are committing to 
the position to only fund it for 19 hours/week rather than the 32 hours/week they are currently 
committed to. The amount would come out of the 2020 fund balance.  







Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve funding up to $20,000 for the Senior Center Program 
Volunteer Coordination position through 2020. Motion carried 4-0.  


Discussion and possible action to utilize Contingency Funds not-to-exceed $3,000 to complete the 
purchase of a new handicap accessible van 
Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to recommend that the council approve the purchase of a new 
handicap accessible van with funds from contingency not to exceed $3,000. Motion carried 4-0. 


Discussion and possible action to pursue a small claims lawsuit in an effort to collect amounts owed to 
the City in relation to an existing annexation agreement  
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend that that the council approve the recommendation 
to take the amounts owed to small claims court. Motion carried 4-0.  


 Discussion and possible action to shift money available in the 2019 CIP and request an additional 
$2,000 in funding to complete Squad Laptop Replacements  
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve the transfer of funds to complete Squad Laptop 
Replacements. Motion carried 4-0. 


 Discussion and possible action to pursue a 1-year full revaluation contract extension or pursue a 5-
year full revaluation contract with Accurate Appraisal 
The committee recommended a 1 year contract.  


Adjournment 
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to adjourn at 6:53 p.m. Motion carried 4-0. 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 





		01-July 24, 2019 PSC Minutes

		02-CACP Minutes 8-6

		03-August 13, 2019 Finance Minutes






Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time:  Tuesday, August 27, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, 


Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Brett Schumacher  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  


 


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted that there 11 alders present. Ligocki was absent and excused.  


 


League of Wisconsin Municipalities Presentation 


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record.  


Planning (7/8/19); Finance (7/23/19); RDA (7/10/19); Utilities (7/18/19 Regular, 7/18/19 Special); Park 


& Rec (7/16/19); Whitewater Park Steering Committee (7/15/19) 


 


Public Comment Period:  


 
 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. August 13, 2019 Council Minutes 


B. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities June 2019 Financial 


Summary; Stoughton Utilities June 2019 Statistical Report 


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Heili to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-23-2019- An Ordinance to Adopt the Amended Comprehensive Plan of the City of Stoughton  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve O-23-2019 An Ordinance to Adopt the Amended 


Comprehensive Plan of the City of Stoughton. Motion carried 10-1 with Boersma voting ‘no’.   


        
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-130-2019- A resolution earmarking unassigned fund balance not-to-exceed $20,000 to fund the 


Senior Center Program Volunteer Coordinator position at 32 hours per week with benefits through 2020  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Riley to approve R-130-2019 A resolution earmarking unassigned 


fund balance not-to-exceed $20,000 to fund the Senior Center Program Volunteer Coordinator position 


at 32 hours per week with benefits through 2020.  Human Resources Director Gillingham stated that the 


person in the current position has resigned. Senior Center Director McGlynn stated that this isn’t going 


  


 







through the 2020 budgeting process because they want to be able to post the job and guarantee 


programming through the end of the year. Majewski said that this is a pit-fall of accepting outside funds 


for City employment.  Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-128-2019- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Conditionally Approving the 


Final Plat for Hamilton Street Condominiums  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-128-2019 Resolution by the Common Council of 


the City of Stoughton Conditionally Approving the Final Plat for Hamilton Street Condominiums. 


Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-129-2019- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Margaret Gasner to allow Weebleworld Daycare 


to expand the group daycare use at 1815 Cedarbrook Lane, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  


 


Motion by Caravello, second by Riley to approve R-129-2019 Approving a Conditional Use Permit for 


Margaret Gasner to allow Weebleworld Daycare to expand the group daycare use at 1815 Cedarbrook 


Lane, Stoughton, Wisconsin. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-131-2019- A resolution authorizing the City of Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller to utilize 


Contingency Funds not-to-exceed $3,000 to complete the purchase of a new handicap accessible van for 


the shared-ride taxi program  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-131-2019 A resolution authorizing the City of 


Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller to utilize Contingency Funds not-to-exceed $3,000 to 


complete the purchase of a new handicap accessible van for the shared-ride taxi program.   Majewski 


said that the language should be changed to refer to the van as a “disabled accessible” van. Motion 


carried 11-0. 


 


R-132-2019- To authorize a small claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE 


Investment Company LLP regarding unpaid annexation agreement town tax reimbursements  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-132-2019 To authorize a small claims lawsuit 


against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP regarding unpaid annexation 


agreement town tax reimbursements.  Motion by Heili, second by Jenson to amend the motion to state: 


authorizing a small claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company 


LLP or such other parties/party as may be appropriate regarding unpaid annexation agreement town tax 


reimbursements. Motion carried 11-0.  


Original motion carried 11-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding a 1-year contract extension with Accurate Appraisal for 


Assessor Services 


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to enter into a 1-year contract extension with Accurate 


Appraisal for Assessor Services. Motion carried 11-0. 







 


R-133-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Licensing Agreement for 


Communications Attachments to Utility Poles Between the City of Stoughton Utilities and TDS 


Metrocom, LLC  


 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Heili to approve R-133-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper City 


officials to approve the Licensing Agreement for Communications Attachments to Utility Poles 


Between the City of Stoughton Utilities and TDS Metrocom, LLC. Motion carried 11-0. 


Discussion regarding financial health of TID No. 6 and potential future transactions (Business Park 


North Expansion) ***The Council may convene in closed session, pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85 (1) (e) 


for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of 


public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 


require a closed session. *** 


 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Jenson to go into closed session at 8:04 p.m. pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85 


(1) (e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of 


public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 


require a closed session. Motion carried on roll call vote 11-0. 


 


Boersma left the meeting at 8:58 p.m.  


 


ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Reeves, second by Riley to adjourn at 9:09 p.m. Motion carried 10-0. 








 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Dawn Clark     American Legion Post 59 


  Diana Acevedo    1933 Speakeasy 


  Kelsey Backes     Lon’s Tailgaters 


  Sally Schieldt     American Legion Post 59 


         


    


 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-134-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   September 10, 2019 








QB\59187889.1 


 


 


 


Resolution No. R-135-2019 


RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF APPROXIMATELY 


$1,900,000 WATERWORKS SYSTEM MORTGAGE REVENUE BONDS 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the "City") is presently in need 


of approximately $1,900,000 for the public purpose of financing improvements to the City's 


Waterworks System (the "System"); and 


 


 WHEREAS, it is desirable to borrow said funds through the issuance of waterworks system 


revenue bonds pursuant to Section 66.0621, Wis. Stats. 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 


 


 Section 1.  Issuance of the Bonds.  The City shall issue its Waterworks System Mortgage 


Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds") in an amount of approximately $1,900,000 for the purpose above 


specified. 


 


 Section 2.  Sale of the Bonds.  The Common Council hereby authorizes and directs that the 


Bonds be offered for public sale.  At a subsequent meeting, the Common Council shall consider such 


bids for the Bonds as may have been received and take action thereon. 


 


 Section 3.  Notice of Sale.  The City Clerk (in consultation with the City's financial advisor, 


Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers")) is hereby authorized and directed to cause the sale of the Bonds 


to be publicized at such times and in such manner as the City Clerk may determine and to cause 


copies of a complete Notice of Sale and other pertinent data to be forwarded to interested bidders as 


the City Clerk may determine. 


 


 Section 4. Official Statement.  The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) shall also cause an 


Official Statement to be prepared and distributed.  The appropriate City officials shall determine when 


the Official Statement is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12 and 


shall certify said Statement, such certification to constitute full authorization of such Statement under 


this resolution. 


 


Adopted, approved and recorded September 10, 2019. 


 


_____________________________ 


Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor 


ATTEST: 


____________________________ 


Holly Licht 


City Clerk 


 


(SEAL) 







 


 


    
 


September 10, 2019 


 
Pre-Sale Report for 
 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds,  
Series 2019B 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Prepared by: 


 
David Ferris, CPA 
Municipal Advisor 
 
Philip Cosson, CIPMA 
Senior Municipal Advisor 







 


 
 
Presale Report  
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


September 10, 2019 
Page 1 


 


Executive Summary of Proposed Debt 
 


Proposed Issue: $1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


Purposes: The proposed issue includes financing for the following purposes:  


 2019 and 2020 water system capital improvements 


Authority: The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statute(s): 


 66.0621 


The Bonds are not general obligations of the City but are payable only from and 
secured by a pledge of income and revenue to be derived from the operation of 
the Water System. 


Term/Call Feature: The Bonds are being issued for a term of 15 years.  Principal on the Bonds will 
be due on May 1 in the years 2020 through 2034. Interest is payable every six 
months beginning May 1, 2020. 


The Bonds will be subject to prepayment at the discretion of the City on May 1, 
2027 or any date thereafter. 


Bank Qualification: Because the City is expecting to issue no more than $10,000,000 in tax exempt 
debt during the calendar year, the City will be able to designate the Bonds as 
“bank qualified” obligations.  Bank qualified status broadens the market for the 
Bonds, which can result in lower interest rates. 


Rating: The City’s most recent bond issues were rated by Moody’s Investors Service. 
The current ratings on those bonds are “A1”. The City will request a new rating 
for the Bonds. 


If the winning bidder on the Bonds elects to purchase bond insurance, the rating 
for the issue may be higher than the City's bond rating in the event that the bond 
rating of the insurer is higher than that of the City. 


Basis for Recommendation: Based on our knowledge of your situation, your objectives communicated to us, 
our advisory relationship as well as characteristics of various municipal 
financing options, we are recommending the issuance of Bonds as a suitable 
option based on: 


 Net system revenues available for debt service that provide sufficient 
coverage for the estimated principal and interest payments of the 
proposed Bonds and existing parity debt. 


 The City’s past practice of using revenue bonds to finance enterprise 
system improvements. 







 


 
 
Presale Report  
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


September 10, 2019 
Page 2 


 


Method of Sale/Placement: We will solicit competitive bids for the purchase of the Bonds from underwriters 
and banks. 


We will include an allowance for discount bidding in the terms of the issue. The 
discount is treated as an interest item and provides the underwriter with all or a 
portion of their compensation in the transaction.  


If the Bonds are purchased at a price greater than the minimum bid amount 
(maximum discount), the unused allowance may be used to reduce your 
borrowing amount. 


Premium Pricing: In some cases, investors in municipal bonds prefer “premium” pricing 
structures.  A premium is achieved when the coupon for any maturity (the 
interest rate paid by the issuer) exceeds the yield to the investor, resulting in a 
price paid that is greater than the face value of the bonds.  The sum of the 
amounts paid in excess of face value is considered “reoffering premium.” The 
underwriter of the bonds will retain a portion of this reoffering premium as their 
compensation (or “discount”) but will pay the remainder of the premium to the 
City.  


For this issue of Bonds, any premium amount received may: be retained; used 
to reduce the issue size; or combination thereof.  These adjustments may slightly 
change the true interest cost of the original bid, either up or down.  We anticipate 
using any premium amounts received to reduce the issue size. 


The amount of premium allowed can be restricted in the bid 
specifications.  Restrictions on premium may result in fewer bids, but may also 
eliminate large adjustments on the day of sale and unintended results with 
respect to debt service payment impacts.  Ehlers will identify appropriate 
premium restrictions for the Bonds intended to achieve the City’s objectives for 
this financing.  


Other Considerations: The Bonds will be offered with the option of the successful bidder utilizing a 
term bond structure.  By offering underwriters the option to “term up” some of 
the maturities at the time of the sale, it gives them more flexibility in finding a 
market for your Bonds.   This makes your issue more marketable, which can 
result in lower borrowing costs.  In the event that the successful bidder utilizes 
a term bond structure, we recommend the City retain a paying agent to handle 
responsibility for processing mandatory redemption/call notices associated with 
term bonds. 


Review of Existing Debt: We have reviewed all outstanding indebtedness for the City and find that there 
are no refunding opportunities at this time. 


We will continue to monitor the market and the call dates for the City’s 
outstanding debt and will alert you to any future refunding opportunities. 







 


 
 
Presale Report  
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


September 10, 2019 
Page 3 


 


Continuing Disclosure: Because the City has more than $10,000,000 in outstanding debt (including this 
issue) and this issue is over $1,000,000, the City will be agreeing to provide 
certain updated Annual Financial Information and its Audited Financial 
Statement annually, as well as providing notices of the occurrence of certain 
reportable events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), 
as required by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The 
City is already obligated to provide such reports for its existing bonds, and has 
contracted with Ehlers to prepare and file the reports.  


Arbitrage Monitoring: Because the Bonds tax-exempt obligations, the City must ensure compliance 
with certain Internal Revenue Service (IRS) rules throughout the life of the 
issue.  These rules apply to all gross proceeds of the issue, including initial bond 
proceeds and investment earnings in construction, escrow, debt service, and any 
reserve funds. How issuers spend bond proceeds and how they track interest 
earnings on funds (arbitrage/yield restriction compliance) are common subjects 
of IRS inquiries.  Your specific responsibilities will be detailed in the Tax 
Exemption Certificate prepared by your Bond Attorney and provided at closing. 
We recommend that you regularly monitor compliance with these rules and/or 
retain the services of a qualified firm to assist you. We also recommend that you 
establish written procedures regarding compliance with IRS rules. 


Investment of and Accounting 
for Proceeds: 


In order to more efficiently segregate funds for this project and maximize 
interest earnings, we recommend using an investment advisor, to assist with the 
investment of bond proceeds until they are needed to pay project costs. Ehlers 
Investment Partners, a subsidiary of Ehlers and registered investment advisor, 
is available to discuss an appropriate investment strategy with the City. 


Risk Factors: Utility Revenue:  The City expects to pay the Bond debt service with: 


 Water Revenues 


In the event utility revenues are insufficient to pay debt service, the Common 
Council is committing to consider appropriating funds from any other available 
sources in an amount sufficient to cover the shortfall.  If it chooses to do so, the 
City may levy a tax to make up a shortfall.  Any amount levied for this purpose 
is exempted from levy limits. While the City is not required to appropriate the 
funds necessary to remedy any shortfall in revenues needed to pay debt service, 
failure to do so would result in either a lack of access to capital markets in the 
future, or access at a substantially higher cost. 


   







 


 
 
Presale Report  
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


September 10, 2019 
Page 4 


 


Other Service Providers: This debt issuance will require the engagement of other public finance service 
providers.  This section identifies those other service providers, so Ehlers can 
coordinate their engagement on your behalf.  Where you have previously used 
a particular firm to provide a service, we have assumed that you will continue 
that relationship. For services you have not previously required, we have 
identified a service provider.  Fees charged by these service providers will be 
paid from proceeds of the obligation, unless you notify us that you wish to pay 
them from other sources. Our pre-sale bond sizing includes a good faith estimate 
of these fees, but the final fees may vary. If you have any questions pertaining 
to the identified service providers or their role, or if you would like to use a 
different service provider for any of the listed services please contact us. 


Bond Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP 


Paying Agent: Bond Trust Services if there are Term Bonds 


Rating Agency: Moody's Investors Service, Inc.  


  







Presale Report  
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


September 10, 2019 
Page 5 


Proposed Debt Issuance Schedule 


Pre-Sale Review by Common Council: September 10, 2019 


Due Diligence Call to review Official Statement: To be determined 


Distribute Official Statement: Week of October 14, 2019 


Conference with Rating Agency: To be determined 


Common Council Meeting to Award Sale of the Bonds:  October 22, 2019 


Estimated Closing Date: November 14, 2019 


Attachments 
Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds 


Project Listing 


Estimated Proposed Debt Service Schedule 


Bond Buyer Index 


Ehlers Contacts 
Municipal Advisors: David Ferris (262) 796-6194


Philip Cosson (262) 796-6161


Disclosure Coordinator: Peter Curtin (262) 796-6187


Financial Analyst: Kathy Myers (262) 796-6177


The Preliminary Official Statement for this financing will be sent to the Common Council at their home or email 
address for review prior to the sale date. 







Water Utility Capital Financing Plan & Sizing


Preliminary
Projects


Water


Water System Projects ‐ 2019 1,044,600


Water System Projects ‐ 2020 693,400


Project Needs 1,738,000


Debt Service Reserve


New Debt Service Reserve Requirement 344,852


Transfer from Prior Issue Debt Service Reserve funds (252,000)


Additional Debt Service Requirement Needs 92,852


Issuance Expenses


Municipal Advisor 18,960


Bond Counsel 11,000


Disclosure Counsel 6,600


Paying Agent If terms 850


Rating 13,000


Underwriter Fees 23,750


74,160


Total Funds Needed 1,905,012


Less Interest (8,690)


Rounding 3,678


Size of Issue 1,900,000


Prepared By Ehlers Page 6 09/03/2019







Water Utility Capital Projects – 2019 ‐ 2020
Description Funding Source 2019 2020


2019‐2024 Main Replace Engineering Revenue Bonds 117,500              61,000               


2019 Main replace ‐ Monroe: Main to Lowell Revenue Bonds 386,000              ‐


2019 Main replace ‐ Monroe: Main to Patterson Revenue Bonds 71,000                ‐


2019 Main replace ‐ Lowell: Monroe to Page Revenue Bonds 259,300              ‐


2019 Main replace ‐ Patterson Revenue Bonds 149,800              ‐


2020 Main replace‐Grant: Prospect to Taft Revenue Bonds ‐ 77,000               


2020 Main replace‐ Prospect: Page to Mckinley (O) Revenue Bonds ‐ 323,000             


2020 Hydrant replace ‐ Roby Road Revenue Bonds ‐ 20,000               


Chemicals Utility Reserve 18,000                20,000               


Generator Testing ‐ Wells 5 & 7, Tower II Utility Reserve 1,500  3,000 


Large Meter Replacements Revenue Bonds 28,000                25,000               


Large meter testing  Utility Reserve ‐ 6,000 


Lead Service Replacements Revenue Bonds 8,000  75,000               


Meters ‐ New and Replacements Revenue Bonds 25,000                26,500               


Seal Coat Driveways Utility Reserve ‐ 2,500 


Water Service Truck #23 (2010) Revenue Bonds ‐ 35,000               


Water System Study Revenue Bonds ‐ 30,000               


Water Valve Adustments For Street Dept. Projects Utility Reserve 8,000  ‐


Water Valve Adustments For Street Dept. Projects Revenue Bonds ‐ 20,900               


WDNR Regulations Samples Utility Reserve 15,000                15,000               


1,087,100$        739,900$           


2019 2020


Revenue Bonds 1,044,600$       693,400$          


Utility Reserve 42,500              46,500              


1,087,100$       739,900$           


Prepared By Ehlers Page 7 09/03/2019







Water Utility Capital Financing Plan & Sizing


System Revenues Debt Service Coverage Ratios


Existing Debt Water Utility Revenue Bond, Series 2019A


Debt Capacity


2019 2,121,101 747,553 314,173 40,257 354,430 354,430 2.11 580,011        2019
2020 2,121,101 747,553 339,952 35,760 375,711 110,000 1.42% 37,434 147,434 523,145 1.43 411,296        2020
2021 2,121,101 747,553 335,751 30,735 366,486 110,000 1.46% 37,282 147,282 513,768 1.46 420,674        2021
2022 2,121,101 747,553 326,571 25,415 351,986 115,000 1.55% 35,587 150,587 502,573 1.49 431,868        2022
2023 2,121,101 747,553 352,414 19,560 371,974 115,000 1.67% 33,736 148,736 520,709 1.44 413,732        2023
2024 2,121,101 747,553 168,278 14,714 182,992 120,000 1.79% 31,702 151,702 334,694 2.23 599,747        2024
2025 2,121,101 747,553 174,166 10,720 184,886 120,000 1.93% 29,470 149,470 334,356 2.24 600,086        2025
2026 2,121,101 747,553 180,078 5,890 185,967 120,000 2.04% 27,088 147,088 333,055 2.24 601,386        2026
2027 2,121,101 747,553 36,014 2,960 38,974 125,000 2.11% 24,545 149,545 188,518 3.97 745,923        2027
2028 2,121,101 747,553 36,974 1,999 38,974 130,000 2.18% 21,809 151,809 190,783 3.92 743,659        2028
2029 2,121,101 747,553 37,961 1,013 38,974 130,000 2.26% 18,923 148,923 187,897 3.98 746,545        2029
2030 2,121,101 747,553 0 135,000 2.34% 15,875 150,875 150,875 4.95 783,567        2030
2031 2,121,101 747,553 0 135,000 2.40% 12,675 147,675 147,675 5.06 786,766        2031
2032 2,121,101 747,553 0 140,000 2.48% 9,319 149,319 149,319 5.01 785,122        2032
2033 2,121,101 747,553 0 145,000 2.54% 5,742 150,742 150,742 4.96 783,700        2033
2034 2,121,101 747,553 0 150,000 2.60% 1,950 151,950 151,950 4.92 782,491        2034


2,302,332 189,023 2,491,355 1,900,000 343,134 2,243,134 4,734,488


NOTES:


Rates based upon 8/26/19 sale of A‐ rated Water/Sewer Revenue Bond + 0.25.
1Total system revenues available for debt service is based upon the 2018 audit.


Interest Total Total Payments YEARRatesYEAR Total Net Principal Interest Total Principal


2019 Water Revenue Bonds 082719.xlsx


Prepared By Ehlers Page 8 09/03/2019







3 YEAR TREND IN MUNICIPAL BOND INDICES


Source: The Bond Buyer


The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index” (BBI) shows average yields on a group of municipal bonds that 
mature in 20 years and have an average rating equivalent to Moody’s Aa2 and S&P’s AA. 


Page 9 09/03/2019







   


City of Stoughton, WI 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


SINGLE PURPOSE 


Dated November 14, 2019 Assumes BVAL A- Rev Scale 8/26/19 + .25 


Sources & Uses 


 Dated 11/14/2019 |  Delivered 11/14/2019


Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $1,900,000.00


Transfers from Prior Issue DSR Funds 252,000.00


Est. Int. Earnings @ 2.0@ for 3 mos 8,690.00


 
Total Sources $2,160,690.00


 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.250%) 23,750.00


Financial Advisor 18,960.00


Disclosure Counsel 6,600.00


Bond Counsel 11,000.00


Paying Agent 850.00


Rating Agency Fee 13,000.00


Deposit to Debt Service Reserve Fund (DSRF) 344,852.02


Deposit to Project Construction Fund 1,738,000.00


Rounding Amount 3,677.98


 
Total Uses $2,160,690.00


prop 19 $19005m Water Bon  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  8/30/2019  |  11:15 AM


  
  Page 1







   


City of Stoughton, WI 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


SINGLE PURPOSE 


Dated November 14, 2019 Assumes BVAL A- Rev Scale 8/26/19 + .25 


Debt Service Schedule 


Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total


11/14/2019 - - - - -


05/01/2020 110,000.00 1.420% 18,391.57 128,391.57 -


11/01/2020 - - 19,042.25 19,042.25 147,433.82


05/01/2021 110,000.00 1.460% 19,042.25 129,042.25 -


11/01/2021 - - 18,239.25 18,239.25 147,281.50


05/01/2022 115,000.00 1.550% 18,239.25 133,239.25 -


11/01/2022 - - 17,348.00 17,348.00 150,587.25


05/01/2023 115,000.00 1.670% 17,348.00 132,348.00 -


11/01/2023 - - 16,387.75 16,387.75 148,735.75


05/01/2024 120,000.00 1.790% 16,387.75 136,387.75 -


11/01/2024 - - 15,313.75 15,313.75 151,701.50


05/01/2025 120,000.00 1.930% 15,313.75 135,313.75 -


11/01/2025 - - 14,155.75 14,155.75 149,469.50


05/01/2026 120,000.00 2.040% 14,155.75 134,155.75 -


11/01/2026 - - 12,931.75 12,931.75 147,087.50


05/01/2027 125,000.00 2.110% 12,931.75 137,931.75 -


11/01/2027 - - 11,613.00 11,613.00 149,544.75


05/01/2028 130,000.00 2.180% 11,613.00 141,613.00 -


11/01/2028 - - 10,196.00 10,196.00 151,809.00


05/01/2029 130,000.00 2.260% 10,196.00 140,196.00 -


11/01/2029 - - 8,727.00 8,727.00 148,923.00


05/01/2030 135,000.00 2.340% 8,727.00 143,727.00 -


11/01/2030 - - 7,147.50 7,147.50 150,874.50


05/01/2031 135,000.00 2.400% 7,147.50 142,147.50 -


11/01/2031 - - 5,527.50 5,527.50 147,675.00


05/01/2032 140,000.00 2.480% 5,527.50 145,527.50 -


11/01/2032 - - 3,791.50 3,791.50 149,319.00


05/01/2033 145,000.00 2.540% 3,791.50 148,791.50 -


11/01/2033 - - 1,950.00 1,950.00 150,741.50


05/01/2034 150,000.00 2.600% 1,950.00 151,950.00 -


11/01/2034 - - - - 151,950.00


Total $1,900,000.00 - $343,133.57 $2,243,133.57 -


Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $14,951.39


Average Life 7.869 Years


Average Coupon 2.2949946%


 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.4538427%


True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.4640087%


Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.2843168%


All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.8564956%


 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 2.2949946%


Weighted Average Maturity 7.869 Years


prop 19 $19005m Water Bon  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  8/30/2019  |  11:15 AM


  
  Page 2







   


City of Stoughton, WI 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


SINGLE PURPOSE 


Dated November 14, 2019 Assumes BVAL A- Rev Scale 8/26/19 + .25 


Net Debt Service Schedule 


Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Existing D/S Net New D/S Fiscal Total


11/14/2019 - - - - - - -


05/01/2020 110,000.00 1.420% 18,391.57 128,391.57 324,337.50 452,729.07 -


11/01/2020 - - 19,042.25 19,042.25 12,400.00 31,442.25 484,171.32


05/01/2021 110,000.00 1.460% 19,042.25 129,042.25 317,400.00 446,442.25 -


11/01/2021 - - 18,239.25 18,239.25 10,112.50 28,351.75 474,794.00


05/01/2022 115,000.00 1.550% 18,239.25 133,239.25 305,112.50 438,351.75 -


11/01/2022 - - 17,348.00 17,348.00 7,900.00 25,248.00 463,599.75


05/01/2023 115,000.00 1.670% 17,348.00 132,348.00 327,900.00 460,248.00 -


11/01/2023 - - 16,387.75 16,387.75 5,100.00 21,487.75 481,735.75


05/01/2024 120,000.00 1.790% 16,387.75 136,387.75 140,100.00 276,487.75 -


11/01/2024 - - 15,313.75 15,313.75 3,918.75 19,232.50 295,720.25


05/01/2025 120,000.00 1.930% 15,313.75 135,313.75 143,918.75 279,232.50 -


11/01/2025 - - 14,155.75 14,155.75 1,993.75 16,149.50 295,382.00


05/01/2026 120,000.00 2.040% 14,155.75 134,155.75 146,993.75 281,149.50 -


11/01/2026 - - 12,931.75 12,931.75 - 12,931.75 294,081.25


05/01/2027 125,000.00 2.110% 12,931.75 137,931.75 - 137,931.75 -


11/01/2027 - - 11,613.00 11,613.00 - 11,613.00 149,544.75


05/01/2028 130,000.00 2.180% 11,613.00 141,613.00 - 141,613.00 -


11/01/2028 - - 10,196.00 10,196.00 - 10,196.00 151,809.00


05/01/2029 130,000.00 2.260% 10,196.00 140,196.00 - 140,196.00 -


11/01/2029 - - 8,727.00 8,727.00 - 8,727.00 148,923.00


05/01/2030 135,000.00 2.340% 8,727.00 143,727.00 - 143,727.00 -


11/01/2030 - - 7,147.50 7,147.50 - 7,147.50 150,874.50


05/01/2031 135,000.00 2.400% 7,147.50 142,147.50 - 142,147.50 -


11/01/2031 - - 5,527.50 5,527.50 - 5,527.50 147,675.00


05/01/2032 140,000.00 2.480% 5,527.50 145,527.50 - 145,527.50 -


11/01/2032 - - 3,791.50 3,791.50 - 3,791.50 149,319.00


05/01/2033 145,000.00 2.540% 3,791.50 148,791.50 - 148,791.50 -


11/01/2033 - - 1,950.00 1,950.00 - 1,950.00 150,741.50


05/01/2034 150,000.00 2.600% 1,950.00 151,950.00 - 151,950.00 -


11/01/2034 - - - - - - 151,950.00


Total $1,900,000.00 - $343,133.57 $2,243,133.57 $1,747,187.50 $3,990,321.07 -


prop 19 $19005m Water Bon  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  8/30/2019  |  11:15 AM


  
  Page 3







   


City of Stoughton, WI 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


SINGLE PURPOSE 


Dated November 14, 2019 Assumes BVAL A- Rev Scale 8/26/19 + .25 


Pricing Summary 


Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollar Price


05/01/2020 Serial Coupon 1.420% 1.420% 110,000.00 100.000% 110,000.00


05/01/2021 Serial Coupon 1.460% 1.460% 110,000.00 100.000% 110,000.00


05/01/2022 Serial Coupon 1.550% 1.550% 115,000.00 100.000% 115,000.00


05/01/2023 Serial Coupon 1.670% 1.670% 115,000.00 100.000% 115,000.00


05/01/2024 Serial Coupon 1.790% 1.790% 120,000.00 100.000% 120,000.00


05/01/2025 Serial Coupon 1.930% 1.930% 120,000.00 100.000% 120,000.00


05/01/2026 Serial Coupon 2.040% 2.040% 120,000.00 100.000% 120,000.00


05/01/2027 Serial Coupon 2.110% 2.110% 125,000.00 100.000% 125,000.00


05/01/2028 Serial Coupon 2.180% 2.180% 130,000.00 100.000% 130,000.00


05/01/2029 Serial Coupon 2.260% 2.260% 130,000.00 100.000% 130,000.00


05/01/2030 Serial Coupon 2.340% 2.340% 135,000.00 100.000% 135,000.00


05/01/2031 Serial Coupon 2.400% 2.400% 135,000.00 100.000% 135,000.00


05/01/2032 Serial Coupon 2.480% 2.480% 140,000.00 100.000% 140,000.00


05/01/2033 Serial Coupon 2.540% 2.540% 145,000.00 100.000% 145,000.00


05/01/2034 Serial Coupon 2.600% 2.600% 150,000.00 100.000% 150,000.00


Total - - - $1,900,000.00 - $1,900,000.00


Bid Information 
 
Par Amount of Bonds $1,900,000.00


Gross Production $1,900,000.00


 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.250%) $(23,750.00)


Bid (98.750%) 1,876,250.00


 
Total Purchase Price $1,876,250.00


 
Bond Year Dollars $14,951.39


Average Life 7.869 Years


Average Coupon 2.2949946%


 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.4538427%


True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.4640087%


prop 19 $19005m Water Bon  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  8/30/2019  |  11:15 AM


  
  Page 4







   


City of Stoughton, WI 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


SINGLE PURPOSE 


Dated November 14, 2019 Assumes BVAL A- Rev Scale 8/26/19 + .25 


Proof of Bond Yield @ 2.2843168% 


Date Cashflow PV Factor Present Value Cumulative PV


11/14/2019 - 1.0000000x - -


05/01/2020 128,391.57 0.9895187x 127,045.86 127,045.86


11/01/2020 19,042.25 0.9783444x 18,629.88 145,675.74


05/01/2021 129,042.25 0.9672964x 124,822.10 270,497.84


11/01/2021 18,239.25 0.9563731x 17,443.53 287,941.37


05/01/2022 133,239.25 0.9455731x 125,987.46 413,928.82


11/01/2022 17,348.00 0.9348952x 16,218.56 430,147.38


05/01/2023 132,348.00 0.9243378x 122,334.25 552,481.64


11/01/2023 16,387.75 0.9138996x 14,976.76 567,458.40


05/01/2024 136,387.75 0.9035793x 123,237.14 690,695.54


11/01/2024 15,313.75 0.8933755x 13,680.93 704,376.47


05/01/2025 135,313.75 0.8832870x 119,520.87 823,897.34


11/01/2025 14,155.75 0.8733124x 12,362.39 836,259.73


05/01/2026 134,155.75 0.8634504x 115,836.83 952,096.57


11/01/2026 12,931.75 0.8536998x 11,039.83 963,136.40


05/01/2027 137,931.75 0.8440593x 116,422.58 1,079,558.97


11/01/2027 11,613.00 0.8345277x 9,691.37 1,089,250.34


05/01/2028 141,613.00 0.8251037x 116,845.41 1,206,095.75


11/01/2028 10,196.00 0.8157861x 8,317.76 1,214,413.50


05/01/2029 140,196.00 0.8065738x 113,078.41 1,327,491.92


11/01/2029 8,727.00 0.7974654x 6,959.48 1,334,451.40


05/01/2030 143,727.00 0.7884600x 113,322.99 1,447,774.39


11/01/2030 7,147.50 0.7795562x 5,571.88 1,453,346.26


05/01/2031 142,147.50 0.7707530x 109,560.61 1,562,906.87


11/01/2031 5,527.50 0.7620492x 4,212.23 1,567,119.10


05/01/2032 145,527.50 0.7534437x 109,646.77 1,676,765.87


11/01/2032 3,791.50 0.7449353x 2,824.42 1,679,590.29


05/01/2033 148,791.50 0.7365231x 109,588.37 1,789,178.67


11/01/2033 1,950.00 0.7282058x 1,420.00 1,790,598.67


05/01/2034 151,950.00 0.7199825x 109,401.33 1,900,000.00


Total $2,243,133.57 - $1,900,000.00 -


Derivation Of Target Amount 
 
Par Amount of Bonds $1,900,000.00


 
Original Issue Proceeds $1,900,000.00


prop 19 $19005m Water Bon  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  8/30/2019  |  11:15 AM


  
  Page 5







   


City of Stoughton, WI 
$1,900,000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B 


SINGLE PURPOSE 


Dated November 14, 2019 Assumes BVAL A- Rev Scale 8/26/19 + .25 


Proof of Reserve Fund Requirement 


Date Principal Interest Existing D/S TOTAL P+I


05/01/2020 110,000.00 18,391.57 324,337.50 452,729.07


05/01/2021 110,000.00 38,084.50 329,800.00 477,884.50


05/01/2022 115,000.00 36,478.50 315,225.00 466,703.50


05/01/2023 115,000.00 34,696.00 335,800.00 485,496.00


05/01/2024 120,000.00 32,775.50 145,200.00 297,975.50


05/01/2025 120,000.00 30,627.50 147,837.50 298,465.00


05/01/2026 120,000.00 28,311.50 148,987.50 297,299.00


05/01/2027 125,000.00 25,863.50 - 150,863.50


05/01/2028 130,000.00 23,226.00 - 153,226.00


05/01/2029 130,000.00 20,392.00 - 150,392.00


05/01/2030 135,000.00 17,454.00 - 152,454.00


05/01/2031 135,000.00 14,295.00 - 149,295.00


05/01/2032 140,000.00 11,055.00 - 151,055.00


05/01/2033 145,000.00 7,583.00 - 152,583.00


05/01/2034 150,000.00 3,900.00 - 153,900.00


Total $1,900,000.00 $343,133.57 $1,747,187.50 $3,990,321.07


PROOF OF RESERVE FUND 
 
MAXIMUM PERIODIC DEBT SERVICE 
100 % of the Maximum Periodic Debt Service 485,496.00


 
AVERAGE PERIODIC DEBT SERVICE 
Total P+I 3,990,321.07


Bond Years (Delivery Date) 14.46


125 % of the Average Periodic Debt Service 344,852.02


 
RESERVE REQUIREMENT 
Computed Requirement 344,852.02


Proof's Requirement 344,852.02


 


prop 19 $19005m Water Bon  |  SINGLE PURPOSE  |  8/30/2019  |  11:15 AM


  
  Page 6







2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of water 1,284,994$    1,416,545$   1,465,315$    1,496,750$     1,656,369$     1,708,173$     
Public Fire Protection 446,666         498,439       520,495         530,529          541,560          560,318          
Private Fire Protection 29,373           38,842         43,901           46,711            54,396            56,028            
Other 23,383           47,298         41,518           47,111            50,000            50,000            


Total Operating Revenues 1,784,416$    2,001,124$   2,071,229$    2,121,101$     2,302,325$     2,374,519$     
8.60% 3.21%


OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance 869,159$       969,933$      992,653$       943,589$        986,790$        1,085,789$     
Taxes 18,566           22,271         22,204           22,232            22,880            23,216            
Depreciation (Utility Financed) 296,895         302,956       315,908         330,652          362,324          380,723          
PILOT 363,249         387,855       420,305         423,351          442,040          469,293          


Total Operating Expenses 1,547,869$    1,683,015$   1,751,070$    1,719,824$     1,814,034$     1,959,021$     
11.59% 2.34% -4.94% -0.59% 10.03%


REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME 236,547$       318,109$      320,159$       401,277$        488,291$        415,498$        


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 8,435,003$    9,201,577$   9,904,869$    10,271,417$   10,722,871$   11,244,646$   
RATE OF RETURN (Allowed - 5.00%) 2.80% 3.46% 3.23% 3.91% 4.55% 3.70%


OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Sales of water 1,780,533$    1,953,428$   2,036,464$    2,083,445$     2,252,325$     2,324,519$     
Routine operating expenditures (863,014)        (980,187)      (1,031,439)     (1,030,058)      (986,790)        (1,085,789)      
Transfers and taxes (343,995)        (359,016)      (391,598)        (426,565)        (446,231)        (465,255)        
Miscellaneous income 23,383           47,298         41,518           47,111            50,000            50,000            


Total Operating Cash Flows 596,907$       661,523$      654,945$       673,933$        869,303$        823,474$        


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS
Acquisition of capital assets (1,035,382)$   (911,032)$    (774,325)$      (498,588)$       (1,126,300)$    (665,860)$       
Principal paid (151,257)        (1,399,957)   (373,677)        (369,415)        (365,173)        (500,952)        
Interest paid (74,276)          (88,323)        (56,726)          (52,040)          (47,007)          (78,914)          
Debt proceeds 522,000         2,520,000     -                -                 1,738,000       -                 
Special assessments -                -               65,134           236,757          38,314            37,153            


(738,915)$      120,688$      (1,139,594)$   (683,286)$       237,834$        (1,208,573)$    
INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income 53,308$         37,294$       38,866$         29,319$          11,105$          17,162$          


Net Change in Cash (88,700)$        819,505$      (445,783)$      19,966$          1,118,242$     (367,937)$       


ENDING CASH BALANCE 799,159$       1,588,175$   1,110,284$    1,110,651$     2,321,745$     1,953,808$     


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 306,877$       741,234$      478,973$       538,234$        955,409$        1,201,181$     


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND 2.09               4.55             2.83               3.11               5.09               6.20               
(Target is 5 Months Sales Revenue)


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 0.00% 3.00%
DEBT ISSUE NEEDED 1,900,000$     -$               


WATER







 Capital 
Expenditures 


2014 588,494$         
2015 1,035,382$      
2016 911,032$         
2017 774,325$         
2018 498,588$         
2019 1,126,300$      
2020 665,860$         
2021 1,381,115$      
2022 1,310,374$      
2023 1,611,200$      
2024 1,499,820$      FO


R
EC


A
ST


ED
WATER


A
C


TU
A


L


 $-


 $200,000


 $400,000


 $600,000


 $800,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,400,000


 $1,600,000


 $1,800,000


2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024













































		05a-R-135-2019 Providing for the Sale of Waterworks System Mortgage Revenue Bonds

		05b-PreSaleReport.Stoughton.2019B

		PreSaleReport.Stoughton.2019A

		1

		2

		3



		05c-Presale Munex Stoughton 2019B

		05d-Water Forecasted Financials

		Final Summary

		O&M - Capital



		05e-Tax Exempt Questionnaire










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing the City of Stoughton Finance Department to create a garbage and recycling service 


special revenue fund (Refuse Fund). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee approved 5-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R136-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
September 10, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton provides contracted residential and limited commercial curbside garbage 


and recycling service and incurs contractual and administrative expenses in providing this service; and 


 


WHEREAS, significant cost increases in 2020 and thereafter are expected due to the changing nature of the 


recyclable materials market; and  


 


WHEREAS, the garbage and recycling service is currently budgeted in the general fund and revenues are 


billed and collected on the tax roll as a special charge; and 


 


WHEREAS, the cost increases will consume a significant portion of the expenditure increase permitted 


under the expenditure restraint program; and 


 


WHEREAS, the special charge is legally restricted to funding only the refuse and recycling service 


expenditures incurred; and 


 


WHEREAS, generally accepted accounting principles permit the creation of a special revenue fund to 


segregate legally restricted revenues for specific purposes and that special revenue fund expenditure 


increases are not considered in the expenditure restraint program; and 


 


WHEREAS, it will assist the City of Stoughton in setting a fair special charge amount to segregate the fees 


and track expenditures in a special revenue fund: 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the City of Stoughton Finance 


Department is authorized to create a special revenue fund for garbage and recycling service expenditures and 


revenues; and 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton assigns an effective date 


for this new fund of January 1, 2020.  


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       





